
           

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AND APPEALS AGENDA
Thursday, March 1, 2012

6:30 p.m.

Coon Rapids City Center

Council Chambers

           

Memo Re: Consideration of Appeals from David Brodie, Assistant City Attorney
 

Call to Order
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

Roll Call
 

Adopt Agenda
 

Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting - February 2, 2012
 

Public Hearing
 

Old Business
 

New Business
 

1. Special Assessment Objection, Bruce Nelson, 2961 121st Avenue NW, 09-31-24-31-0080, Case 12-03V
 

2. Special Assessment Objection, Gerald Patt, 2121 109th Avenue NW, 15-31-24-34-0138, Case 12-04V
 

3. Special Assessment Objection, Derek Glowacki (POA for Donald Glowacki), 10024 Cottonwood Street

NW, 25-31-24-11-0020, Case 12-05V
 

4. Case 12-06V Not Assigned
 

5. Special Assessment Objection, Barbara Curry by David Curry, 2190 Coon Rapids Blvd. NW,

22-31-24-24-0068, Case 12-07V
 

6. Special Assessment Objection, Leslie Price, 1947 108th Lane NW, 22-31-24-12-0065, Case 12-08V
 

7. Special Assessment Objection, Jon Smoluch, 10522 Foley Blvd. NW, 24-31-24-13-0108, Case 12-09V
 

8. Special Assessment Objection, Derrek Rand Abendroth, 10640 Arrowhead Street NW,

21-31-24-13-0007, Case 12-10V
 

9. Special Assessment Objection, Larisa Pokhilchuk, 11734 Jonquil Street NW, 09-31-24-33-0057, Case

12-11V
 

10. Special Assessment Objection, Mayli Vang, 1093 94th Lane NW, 26-31-24-43-0040, Case 12-14V
 

  

  



11. Special Assessment Objection, Kemet Jolly, 422 109th Avenue NW, 24-31-24-21-0063, Case 12-15V
 

12. Special Assessment Objection, Thomas Durkin, 11106 Hanson Blvd. NW, 15-31-24-31-0009, Case

12-12V
 

13. Special Assessment Objection, KimMarie Hagen, 2441 112th Lane NW, 16-31-24-41-0098, Case 12-13V
 

14. Special Assessment Objection, Carly Hanson, 10521 Palm Street NW, 23-31-24-41-0054, Case 12-16V
 

Other Business
 

Adjourn
 

  

  



   

Board of Adjustment and Appeals - Regular Session             

Meeting Date: 03/01/2012  

Subject: Memo Re: Consideration of Appeals from David Brodie, Assistant City Attorney

From: David Brodie, Assistant City Attorney

INFORMATION:

One of the Board's functions under City Code Sections 3-208 and 11-336 is to consider and decide appeals from

decisions made by the Zoning Administrator and other City staff.  In those cases, the Board shall "interpret,

construe, and decide meanings of the zoning and building codes; but the Board shall not determine the validity of

any such provision of the code."  Code Section 3-208.  A two-thirds (2/3) vote of all Board members is required to

overrule a City staff decision.  Code Section 11-337.  An aggrieved party may appeal the Board's decision to the

City Council within ten (10) days of notice of this decision.  Code Section 11-334.

 

The appeal hearing, while conducted during the Board's regular meeting, is not a public hearing that requires an

opportunity for public comment.  The Board may conduct the hearing as it sees fit.  Staff suggests that City staff

present its position first with the appellant following.  The Board would be able to ask questions of either party as it

sees fit.  Staff requests that the Board execute the Order found on the bottom of appellant's original notice of appeal.



   

Board of Adjustment and Appeals - Regular Session             

Meeting Date: 03/01/2012  

SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting - February 2, 2012

Attachments

February 2, 2012 Minutes



COON RAPIDS BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AND APPEALS MEETING MINUTES OF 
FEBRUARY 2, 2012
The regular meeting of the Coon Rapids Board of Adjustment and Appeals was called to order 
by Chairman Wessling at 6:30 p.m. on Thursday, February 2, 2012, in the Council Chambers.

Members Present: Chairman Gary Wessling, Commissioners Jeanette Rosand, 
Teri Spano-Madden, and Trish Thorup

Members Absent: Commissioner Vande Linde

Staff Present: Housing and Zoning Coordinator Cheryl Bennett, Assistant City Attorney 
David Brodie, Chief Building Official Doug Whitney, Housing Inspector 
Leya Drabczak, Fire Inspector Nick House, Patrol Officer Interna Kim

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Wessling called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

2. APPROVE FEBRUARY 2, 2012 AGENDA

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER THORUP, SECOND BY COMMISSIONER SPANO-
MADDEN, TO ADOPT THE FEBRUARY 2, 2012, AGENDA AS PRESENTED.  THE 
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

3. APPROVE DECEMBER 1, 2011, MEETING MINUTES

Commissioner Thorup requested the following corrections:

Page 3, last paragraph: "within a half mile of Coon Raids Rapids Boulevard."

Page 4, fifth paragraph: "…if they have adequate access…"

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER SPANO-MADDEN, SECOND BY COMMISSIONER
THORUP, TO APPROVE THE DECEMBER 1, 2011, MEETING MINUTES AS AMENDED.  
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

4. CASE 12-01V – SCOTT NELLIS – 10320 GROUSE STREET – APPEAL ORDER OF 
CHIEF BUILDING OFFICIAL

Chairman Wessling reviewed the background on the case.  He asked staff for comments.

Chief Building Official Whitney had no additional comments and offered to answer questions.  
Chairman Wessling confirmed that the property is zoned for residential use.  He asked if it is 
licensed for business and if it could legally be operating as a business.  Chief Building Official 
Whitney stated that this is a home occupation that is not currently legal.  

Housing and Zoning Coordinator Bennett added that there are certain types of home businesses 
that can operate without a separate city license or permit. She explained that one determining 



Board of Adjustment and Appeals Meeting Minutes
February 2, 2012
Page 2

factor for operating a home business is that the residential character of the property must be 
maintained.

Chairman Wessling asked Mr. Nellis to address his concerns.

Scott Nellis, 10320 Grouse Street, provided a written statement to the Board.  He explained that 
this is a rebuttal.

Chairman Wessling advised Mr. Nellis that he had five minutes to address the Board.

Mr. Nellis stated that he has reviewed the city code regarding home businesses.  He noted that he 
does not have customers coming to the house.  He explained that most of his business is done 
out-of-state at business expos and through some internet sales.  He stated that his house does not 
appear different from the neighbors from the outside.  Chairman Wessling stated that a neighbor 
complained which is why there is an issue.

Mr. Nellis stated that the complaint came about because of odor from cedar shavings from rat 
cages that was being used as garden fertilizer.  He reviewed that this is allowed by code and is 
considered manure.  He commented that his neighbors know about his business and have 
otherwise not had any complaints.  He reported that he has reduced the number of rodents on 
hand and increased the frequency of cleanings on the property.  He noted that he now uses his 
trash for waste.  He added that the odor has been reduced.  He explained that ammonia levels 
have been reduced.  He reported that he does not have equipment to test the odor.

Chairman Wessling asked what standards Mr. Nellis is going by to determine that the odor is 
reduced.  Mr. Nellis asked that if his air quality is to be monitored, would the homes of smokers 
also be monitored.  He stated that in this situation he would be considered to be singled out.

Chairman Wessling stated that there is a fire safety issue due to the rows of cages.  Mr. Nellis 
stated that a majority of the cages are located in the basement.  He explained that no one resides 
in the basement.  He reported that he weighed the cages which do not exceed the 40 pounds per 
square foot limit that Chief Building Official Whitney detailed for him.  He stated that he uses 
industry-approved cages.  He stated that a refrigerator would weigh more than his cages.  He 
stated that a fish tank would weigh more in a smaller footprint.  He stated that as far as doing 
illegal activity in his house, it should only be his concern as to what happens in the privacy of his 
home.  He added that there are privacy laws.

Chairman Wessling stated several items were listed as concerns.

Mr. Nellis stated that this is his hobby which should not be a concern.  He stated that many 
people have hobbies that take up a lot of space in their homes.  He stated that he does not have a 
garbage house.  He explained that he has a friend who lives with him and they have duplicates of 
some appliances and that there are some boxes around the house.  He noted that in three to four
months he will be moving items into his storage unit to alleviate some of the crowding.  He 
stated that the animals are kept around the perimeter of the rooms and not throughout the floor
area.  He noted that the room off the entry has two aisles formed by cages but that it is not a 
walk-through room. He noted that he keeps the door closed to this room.



Board of Adjustment and Appeals Meeting Minutes
February 2, 2012
Page 3

Commissioner Spano-Madden asked how the non-smooth surfaces of the Building Officials 
report have been addressed.  Mr. Nellis stated that the two rooms where the reptiles are kept have 
carpet in them.  They have painted wallboard and “popcorn” ceilings.  He explained that the 
reptiles are caged and do not get out to defecate on the carpet.  He explained that people with 
dogs have issues with them defecating on the carpet which is a worse situation than he is dealing 
with. He noted that when cleaning the cages he moves the reptiles to another container.  He 
reported that his home is not a public place and customers are not coming into it.  He stated that 
it is his residence and he should not be required to conform to commercial codes.

Chairman Wessling stated that businesses need to be licensed and have permits.  Mr. Nellis 
stated that he checked with the state in 2007 on the codes.  He added that he is registered and 
licensed with the state.  He stated that has a sales tax number.  He reported he is paying sales 
taxes and income taxes related to the business.

Commissioner Rosand asked how long Mr. Nellis has had his business.  Mr. Nellis stated that in 
2007 he decided to expand his hobby into a business.  He explained that at that time he checked 
on city codes and filed with the state.

Commissioner Rosand asked how many reptiles were on the property in October of 2011.  Mr. 
Nellis stated that the friend who lives with him had owned 45 reptiles and sold them off at a 
significant loss because she was scared about the city's inquiry.  He stated that he had 390
reptiles with the majority of them being under two feet in length.

Commissioner Rosand stated that the city requires a license for cats and dogs over a quantity of 
three per household.  Mr. Nellis stated that he checked on this and that a license is not required 
for reptiles.  He added that he would apply for a license for this but one is not available.

Chairman Wessling asked about the structural findings.  Chief Building Official Whitney stated 
that a certain amount of open space is expected within a home.  He stated that the issue is not 
hoarding but that typical household items like a couch, coffee tables, or TV are not found there. 
He stated that an expectation is that fire crews would be able to get in and out of the house.

Fire Inspector House stated that there is open space downstairs but on the mid-floor level, where 
there are a lot of cages, the windows are blocked limiting access to an exit.  He stated that in the 
basement and mid-floor levels the plastic containers increase the normal fire load per occupancy 
which would make it more dangerous to do a search in case of a fire.  He explained that if the 
house was full of smoke, the firefighters would not be able to crawl through it and find their way
in their bulky gear.

Chairman Wessling confirmed that some windows are blocked with cages.  Fire Inspector House 
stated that there are cages blocking windows and the outer perimeter in the main room.  He 
explained that there are cages in the middle of this room which is blocking egress out of the 
room.

Chairman Wessling confirmed that the cages would be a fire hazard.  Fire Inspector House stated 
that annual inspections which are performed for businesses would find the cages to be a hazard.  
He explained that there are extensive use of extension cords and additional heaters creating 



Board of Adjustment and Appeals Meeting Minutes
February 2, 2012
Page 4

further hazards.  He reviewed that half-mask face respirators needed to be worn when they 
initially inspected the property.  He commented that in the past they have found that the odor 
permeates the carpet and surroundings.

Chairman Wessling asked if the fumes are flammable.  Fire Inspector House stated that he is not 
a hazmat expert.  He explained that ammonia levels are regulated for a nine-to-five job site,
which is what they were measuring on the basement and middle floors.  He reviewed that the 
hazmat team did an inspection and found the odor at the threshold of the daily allowable limit.  
He stated that the average person should likely not be living in this environment 24 hours a day.

Chairman Wessling asked if there is special air ventilation.  Fire Inspector House stated that they 
did not find a separate air quality system.

Chairman Wessling asked if owning snakes is against code.  Chief Building Official Whitney 
stated that the issue is whether there are items found typically in a house or business.  He 
explained that the Humane Society and others that keep animals have an environment that is 
designed by architects and engineers so that ventilation, proper outlets, smooth cleanable 
surfaces and sinks are provided.  He stated that ventilation is set up so that air is not 
recirculating.  He explained that waste disposal and storage cabinets are typically built in. He 
stated that extra heaters, electric cords and limited air circulation are at issue.

Commissioner Thorup asked if Mr. Nellis could lease property from an agricultural property 
owner with an outbuilding that could be used for this purpose and suggested that a hobby farm
could be an alternative.  She asked if this would provide the setting that is needed and be an 
option within the statute. Chief Building Official Whitney stated that agriculture buildings are 
exempt from code enforcement and this would be an alternative.

Chairman Wessling stated that the Commission will discuss the case amongst themselves now.

Mr. Nellis asked if he has an opportunity to give a rebuttal.  Chairman Wessling stated that all of 
the information has been presented already.

Commissioner Thorup stated that homeowners are bound by city ordinances.  She explained that 
Code 6-500 refers to the keeping of nondomestic animals, which includes cobras and boas.  She 
stated that the city is bound by these codes.

Commissioner Rosand stated that the homeowner is saying that the air quality is improved.  She 
requested that an official report of this be presented as the homeowner is living there.

Commissioner Thorup stated that there are fire hazards at the property.

Commissioner Rosand stated that if firefighters are called they expect to be entering a typical 
home and not a pet store environment.

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER THORUP, SECOND BY COMMISSIONER ROSAND, IN 
CASE 12-01V, THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AND APPELAS UPHOLDS THE 
BUILDING UNFIT FOR HUMAN HABITATION (12-313) AND UNSAFE BUILDINGS OR 



Board of Adjustment and Appeals Meeting Minutes
February 2, 2012
Page 5

STRUCTURES (1300.0180) COMPLIANCE ORDER (12-315) OF THE CHIEF BUILDING 
OFFICIAL DATED NOVEMBER 30, 2011.

THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

Chairman Wessling stated that staff requirements were being upheld and asked Mr. Nellis to 
speak with staff if he had any questions.

5. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER SPANO-MADDEN, SECOND BY COMMISSIONER 
THORUP, TO ADJOURN THE MEETING AT 7:08 P.M.  THE MOTION PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY.

Respectfully submitted,
Beth Bostrom
Board of Adjustment and Appeals Secretary



   

Board of Adjustment and Appeals - Regular Session   1.           
Meeting Date: 03/01/2012  

Subject: Special Assessment Objection, Bruce Nelson, 2961 121st Avenue NW, 09-31-24-31-0080, Case

12-03V

From: Kristin DeGrande, Neighborhood Coordinator

INTRODUCTION

A proposed special assessment in the amount of $1,500 has been assessed against the above property.  The property

owner has filed an objection to the assessment.

BACKGROUND & CONSIDERATIONS

The amount of $1,500 is for two Administrative Citation penalties for operating a rental dwelling without a

license.  Anoka County property records showed that the property owner's home address was different than that of

the subject property so a letter was sent to Mr. Nelson in August 2009 letting him know that a rental license was

required.  Mr. Nelson called the City in September 2009 stating that his daughters were living in the house.  Staff

told him that under those circumstances, he would need to file for 'relative homestead' status at the county and then

a rental license would not be required.  A relative homestead was never filed.

Staff continued to monitor the status of this property and after no change another letter was sent on August 24,

2011, stating that a rental license was required to be obtained by September 23, 2011, or a fine would be charged. 

There was no response from the property owner and a $500 Administrative Penalty was assessed for operating a

rental dwelling without a license.  Since the issue remained, another letter was sent to the property owner on

October 3, 2011, stating that a rental license was required by November 1, 2011, or a $1,000 Fine would be

charged.  Mr. Nelson did contact the city on October 11, 2011, stating that his daughter had moved out and that he

now had friends living at the house.  He also stated that he occasionally stays at the house.  Staff explained to him

that since 2961 121st Avenue was not his primary place of residence (Anoka County records shows his primary

address as 12313 Ilex Street) and that because his daughter no longer lived at the house and that friends were

living at this property, he was required to obtain a rental license.  An application for a rental license was not

received by November 1, 2011, and the $1,000 Fine for operating a rental dwelling without a license was assessed. 

Still without resolution, another letter was sent to the property owner on December 28, 2011, requiring that a rental

license be obtained by February 1, 2012, or a fine would be charged.  This penalty has been put on hold since the

property owner is appealing the previous assessments pertaining to the same issue.  

ACTION REQUESTED

In Case 12-03V, it is requested that the Board of Adjustment and Appeals recommend the City Council affirm the

special assessment in its entirety.

Attachments

Supporting Documents















   

Board of Adjustment and Appeals - Regular Session   2.           
Meeting Date: 03/01/2012  

Subject: Special Assessment Objection, Gerald Patt, 2121 109th Avenue NW, 15-31-24-34-0138, Case

12-04V

From: Kristin DeGrande, Neighborhood Coordinator

INTRODUCTION

A proposed special assessment in the amount of $681 has been assessed against the above property.  The property

owner has filed an objection to the assessment.

BACKGROUND & CONSIDERATIONS

The amount of $681 is for an Administrative Citation Penalty for the exterior storage of junk and debris ($300) and

for the removal/abatement costs of these items ($381).

 

City inspectors went out to the property on October 11, 2011, to investigate junk and debris in the yard and an

Administrative Citation was issued on October 13, 2011, with a compliance date of October 20, 2011.  The items

were still there during the re-inspection on October 21, 2011, so the items, including concrete blocks, garden hoses,

a bath matt, scrap wood, wire fencing, and miscellaneous household trash items, were abated by the City’s

contractor later that day on October 21, 2011.

 

The property owner had not contacted the city prior to the abatement date with questions about the citation, a time

extension request or to appeal the citation.

In the written objection to this assessment, the property owner stated that he and his wife moved out the house on

October 8, 2011, and that they had hired a friend to clean up the items.  Staff is unclear as to what items were

cleaned up through this process, but the items listed above remained at the property on the date of re-inspection and

were abated.  The property owner also stated that the house has been given back to the bank but there is no record

of foreclosure yet on Anoka County records.

ACTION REQUESTED

In Case 12-04V, it is requested that the Board of Adjustment and Appeals recommend the City Council affirm the

special assessment in its entirety.

Attachments

Supporting Documents

































   

Board of Adjustment and Appeals - Regular Session   3.           
Meeting Date: 03/01/2012  

Subject: Special Assessment Objection, Derek Glowacki (POA for Donald Glowacki), 10024 Cottonwood

Street NW, 25-31-24-11-0020, Case 12-05V

From: Kristin DeGrande, Neighborhood Coordinator

INTRODUCTION

A proposed special assessment in the amount of $300 has been assessed against the above property.  The property

owner has filed an objection to the assessment.

BACKGROUND & CONSIDERATIONS

The amount of $300 is for an Administrative Citation Penalty for long grass.

 

A City Inspector went out to the property on August 26, 2011, and found the grass/weeds to be 10” and taller.  The

property was posted with an Administrative Citation and a copy was sent to the property owner of record (same

address).  The mailed copy was returned to City Hall by US Mail and marked as 'Not Deliverable as Addressed'. 

The compliance date was September 2, 2011, and the re-inspection took place on September 6, 2011, at which time

it was found that the grass had not been cut.  The property was sent for abatement and the mowing contractor

abated the lawn on September 8, 2011.

The property owner's son did contact City Hall in October 2011 claiming that he had not seen the posting and

requested that future notifications be sent to his address in Elk River (which is how he received a copy of the

assessment letter).  He also states in the written appeal that the City has his current address on file, but that would

be for purposes of water billing only. 

ACTION REQUESTED

In Case 12-05V, it is requested that the Board of Adjustment and Appeals recommend the City Council affirm the

special assessment in its entirety.

Attachments

Supporting Documents



















   

Board of Adjustment and Appeals - Regular Session   5.           
Meeting Date: 03/01/2012  

Subject: Special Assessment Objection, Barbara Curry by David Curry, 2190 Coon Rapids Blvd. NW,

22-31-24-24-0068, Case 12-07V

From: Kristin DeGrande, Neighborhood Coordinator

INTRODUCTION

A proposed special assessment in the amount of $600 has been assessed against the above property.  The property

owner has filed an objection to the assessment.

BACKGROUND & CONSIDERATIONS

The amount of $600 is for an Administrative Citation Penalty for an inoperable vehicle ($300)

and an Administrative Citation Penalty for the second offense of the same violation ($300).

 

A City inspector went out to the property on September 16, 2011, and spoke with the tenant's son about the

condition of the vehicle.  The inspector went back out to the property on September 29, 2011, and nothing had

changed, so an Administrative Citation was issued for flat tires and expired tabs on the vehicle and sent to the

property owner in Crystal.  The compliance date was October 6, 2011.  On October 5, 2011, the property owner

requested a time extension that was granted.  The new compliance date was set at October 29, 2011.  The City

inspector re-inspected the property on November 1, 2011, at which time it was found that the vehicle tires were flat

so the $300 Administrative Citation Penalty was assessed and a second Administrative Citation was issued on

November 8, 2011, for $600 (set amount for a second offense).  The compliance date was November 15, 2011.  The

re-inspection took place on November 18, 2011, at which time the tire was found to be inflated and, therefore, in

compliance.   Despite compliance, since it was a second offense of the same issue within a 180-day period, half of

the Citation Penalty amount ($300) was assessed. 

In the written objection, the property owner states that the tires were repaired prior to the compliance date.  This

may be so, but the tires need to remain compliant with code standards and they were found to be flat at the time of

re-inspection on November 1, 2011.

ACTION REQUESTED

In Case 12-07V, it is requested that the Board of Adjustment and Appeals recommend the City Council affirm the

special assessment in its entirety.

Attachments

Supporting Documents





















   

Board of Adjustment and Appeals - Regular Session   6.           
Meeting Date: 03/01/2012  

Subject: Special Assessment Objection, Leslie Price, 1947 108th Lane NW, 22-31-24-12-0065, Case

12-08V

From: Kristin DeGrande, Neighborhood Coordinator

INTRODUCTION

A proposed special assessment in the amount of $683.50 has been assessed against the above property.  The

property owner has filed an objection to the assessment.

BACKGROUND & CONSIDERATIONS

The amount of $683.50 is for an Administrative Citation Penalty for the exterior storage of junk and debris ($300)

and for the removal/abatement costs of these items ($383.50).

 

City Inspectors went out to the property on October 4, 2011, to investigate junk and debris in the yard.  An

Administrative Citation was issued and sent to the property owner at her address in New Hope on October 5, 2011,

with a compliance date of October 12, 2011.  Some of the items had been removed by the time of the re-inspection

date on October 13, 2011, but many items remained such as carpet padding, plastic items, buckets, cooking

pots, landscape edging, tire rims, miscellaneous wood pieces, wooden doors, windows, scrap metal, and

miscellaneous building materials.  The remaining items were abated by the City’s contractor later that day on

October 13, 2011.

City staff did not receive any phone calls from the property owner with questions regarding the citation or requests

for a time extension regarding this citation.

ACTION REQUESTED

In Case 12-08V, it is requested that the Board of Adjustment and Appeals recommend the City Council affirm the

special assessment in its entirety.

Attachments

Supporting Documents























   

Board of Adjustment and Appeals - Regular Session   7.           
Meeting Date: 03/01/2012  

Subject: Special Assessment Objection, Jon Smoluch, 10522 Foley Blvd. NW, 24-31-24-13-0108, Case

12-09V

From: Kristin DeGrande, Neighborhood Coordinator

INTRODUCTION

A proposed special assessment in the amount of $2,873.50 has been assessed against the above property.  The

property owner has filed an objection to the assessment.

BACKGROUND & CONSIDERATIONS

The amount of $2,873.50 is for three Administrative Citation Penalties for expired vehicle tabs ($1,500),

an Administrative Citation Penatly for the exterior storage of junk and debris ($300), the removal/abatement costs

of these items ($323.50), two Administrative Citation Penalties for not having garbage service ($600), and an

Excessive Consumption fee ($150).

 

City inspectors went out to this rental property on October 19, 2011, to investigate junk and debris in the

yard and an inoperable vehicle (expired tabs and missing wheels) at the property.  An Administrative Citation was

issued and sent to the property owner on October 20, 2011, with a compliance date of October 28, 2011.  The

re-inspection took place on November 2, 2011, at which time no change was found in either violation so a $300

Citation Penalty for junk and debris and a $300 Citation Penalty for a junk vehicle was assessed.  The City's

contractor came later that day to clean up the items from the yard including car parts, tires, a cooler, two vacuum

cleaners, a screen window, and miscellaneous household trash.  Additionally, since the city had issued a previous

Administrative Citation to this property in January 2011 for junk and debris in the yard, and this was now the

second time within a twelve month period that the property had been cited for the same issue, a $150 Excessive

Consumption fee was assessed to the property.

Since the property was still not in compliance, a second Administrative Citation ($600) was issued on November 3,

2011, with a compliance date of November 11, 2011, for the vehicle without current tabs and missing wheels.  On

the same day, an Administrative Citation ($300) was issued for no garbage service at the property.  The compliance

date for this citation was also set for November 11, 2011.  The re-inspection for both citations took place on

November 14, 2011, at which time the City inspector determined there was no change on either violation and found

that there was more junk and debris in the yard/at the front door.  Also on November 14, 2011, the City inspector

spoke with the property owner about the issues at the property.  Both Citation Penalties ($600 and $300) were

assessed to the property.

Still not in compliance, on November 16, 2011, a second Administrative Citation ($600) was issued for no garbage

service at the property and a third Administrative Citation ($1,200) was issued for the vehicle still without current

tabs and missing wheels.  A compliance date was set for November 24, 2011, for each of these citations.  During

the re-inspection on November 28, 2011, it was found that all issues had been addressed and the property was in

compliance - the vehicle was gone, the garbage items had been cleaned up, and garbage service was confirmed

with Waste Management.  Since these were subsequent citations within a 180 day period, despite compliance of the

issues, half the amount of each Citation Penalty was assessed to the property - $300 for no garbage service and

$600 for the vehicle.



All Administrative Citations were mailed to the rental property owner directly at his home address, also on Foley

Boulevard in Coon Rapids.

ACTION REQUESTED

In Case 12-09V, it is requested that the Board of Adjustment and Appeals recommend the City Council affirm the

special assessment in its entirety.

Attachments

Supporting Documents

























































   

Board of Adjustment and Appeals - Regular Session   8.           
Meeting Date: 03/01/2012  

Subject: Special Assessment Objection, Derrek Rand Abendroth, 10640 Arrowhead Street NW,

21-31-24-13-0007, Case 12-10V

From: Kristin DeGrande, Neighborhood Coordinator

INTRODUCTION

A proposed special assessment in the amount of $3,000 has been assessed against the above property.  The property

owner has filed an objection to the assessment.

BACKGROUND & CONSIDERATIONS

The amount of $3,000 is for three Administrative Citation Penalties for parking off pavement.  A previous $300

Administrative Citation Penalty for parking off pavement was assessed earlier in the year (July 2011).

A City Inspector went out to the property on September 2, 2011, and found a trailer parked off pavement.  An

Administrative Citation for $600 (second violation) was issued and sent to the property owner on September 7,

2011, with a compliance date of September 15, 2011.  The re-inspection took place on September 16, 2011, at

which time no change was found so the $600 Citation Penalty was assessed.

 

Since the property was still not compliant, another Administration Citation ($1,200) was issued on September 19,

2011. with a compliance date of September 27, 2011.  The re-inspection took place on September 28, 2011, at

which time no change was found so the $1,200 Citation Penalty was assessed.  The next day, on September 29,

2011, another Administrative Citation ($2,400) was issued with a compliance date of October 7, 2011.  The City

inspector received a voice mail message from the property owner on October 10, 2011.  The City inspector

attempted to return the call but was not able to get ahold of the property owner (no voice mail was set up).  The

re-inspection took place on October 11, 2011, at which time, the property was found to be in compliance so only

half of the Administrative Citation Penalty amount ($1,200) was assessed.

Prior to October 10, 2011, the property owner had not contacted the City with questions about the citation, a time

extension request or to appeal the citation.

ACTION REQUESTED

In Case 12-10V, it is requested that the Board of Adjustment and Appeals recommend the City Council affirm the

special assessment in its entirety.

Attachments

Supporting Documents































   

Board of Adjustment and Appeals - Regular Session   9.           
Meeting Date: 03/01/2012  

Subject: Special Assessment Objection, Larisa Pokhilchuk, 11734 Jonquil Street NW, 09-31-24-33-0057,

Case 12-11V

From: Kristin DeGrande, Neighborhood Coordinator

INTRODUCTION

A proposed special assessment in the amount of $1,200 has been assessed against the above property.  The property

owner has filed an objection to the assessment.

BACKGROUND & CONSIDERATIONS

The amount of $1,200 is for four Administrative Citations - two for parking off pavement and two for boulevard

encroachments.  A City inspector went out to this rental property on October 26, 2011, and found vehicles parked

off pavement, miscellaneous junk and debris, and an inoperable vehicle.  An Administrative Citation citing

violations of two separate code sections was issued and sent to the property owner (at 11734 Jonquil) with a

compliance date of November 3, 2011.  The citation included a violation for exterior storage of junk and debris and

an inoperable vehicle (cited under City Code Section 8-109) and a violation for parking off pavement [Section

11-705(10)].  Each carried a $300 penalty.  The re-inspection took place on November 4, 2011, at which time the

City inspector spoke with the property owner on site.  The junk and debris had been cleaned up and the inoperable

vehicle moved but the parking off pavement issue remained so only one of the $300 Citation Penalties was assessed.

 

Since the property was still not compliant, a second Administration Citation ($600) for the parking off pavement

violation was issued on November 4, 2011, with a compliance date of November 14, 2011.  A separate

Administrative Citation ($300) was also issued on November 4, 2011, for a boulevard encroachment violation

(basketball hoop installed at the curb).  The re-inspection for each took place on November 15, 2011, at which time

the parking issue was resolved but the boulevard encroachment issue remained, so only half of the $600 parking off

pavement Citation Penalty ($300) and the full $300 boulevard encroachment Citation Penalty was assessed.  Then a

second Administrative Citation ($600) was issued for the boulevard encroachment on November 18, 2011.  The

compliance date was set for November 28, 2011, at which time the basketball hoop was removed and the property

was in compliance, so only half of the $600 Citation Penalty ($300) was assessed.

Anoka County records show the property owner and the taxpayer address to be 11734 Jonquil Street NW for this

rental property.  City staff has encouraged the property owners to update this information with their actual home

address of 11738 Jonquil Street NW so that their mail will be delivered more efficiently in the future.

ACTION REQUESTED

In Case 12-11V, it is requested that the Board of Adjustment and Appeals recommend the City Council affirm the

special assessment in its entirety.

Attachments

Supporting Documents

































   

Board of Adjustment and Appeals - Regular Session   10.           

Meeting Date: 03/01/2012  

Subject: Special Assessment Objection, Mayli Vang, 1093 94th Lane NW, 26-31-24-43-0040, Case

12-14V

From: Kristin DeGrande, Neighborhood Coordinator

INTRODUCTION

A proposed special assessment in the amount of $631 has been assessed against the above property.  The property

owner has filed an objection to the assessment.

BACKGROUND & CONSIDERATIONS

The amount of $631 is for an Administrative Citation Penalty for the exterior storage of junk and debris ($300) and

for the removal/abatement costs of these items ($331).

 

City Inspectors went out to the property on September 1, 2011, to investigate junk and debris in the yard and an

Administrative Citation was issued on September 2, 2011, with a compliance date of September 9, 2011.  The

re-inspection took place on September 16, 2011, at which time there was no change in the condition of the

property.  So the $300 Citation Penalty was assessed and the items, including broken flower pots, landscape edging,

a wire cage, miscellaneous wood and building materials, scrap metal, a mop bucket, a folding table, a plastic kids

pool, several broken/inoperable kid bikes, and other miscellaneous junk and debris, were abated by the City's

contractor later that day. 

The property owner makes reference to City Code Section 8-109 in her written objection.  For clarification, "junk

cars and building materials" is simply the title of that section of the City Code and in no way is meant to imply that

this property is in violation of these specific items.  There were no junk cars found at this property.

In reference to the items that the property owner claims were not removed during the abatement, the City does not

take items that are meant for exterior storage and that are in working condition.  For this reason, items not removed

during the abatement would have included items such as the wood stakes meant for climbing vines, garbage bag

filled with leaves, buckets, tubing used for lawn drainage, and undamaged flower pots.

ACTION REQUESTED

In Case 12-14V, it is requested that the Board of Adjustment and Appeals recommend the City Council affirm the

special assessment in its entirety.

Attachments

Supporting Documents































































   

Board of Adjustment and Appeals - Regular Session   11.           

Meeting Date: 03/01/2012  

Subject: Special Assessment Objection, Kemet Jolly, 422 109th Avenue NW, 24-31-24-21-0063, Case

12-15V

From: Kristin DeGrande, Neighborhood Coordinator

INTRODUCTION

A proposed special assessment in the amount of $1,886 have been assessed against the above property.  The

property owner has filed an objection to the assessment.

BACKGROUND & CONSIDERATIONS

The amount of $1,886 is for an Administrative Citation Penalty for the exterior storage of junk and debris ($300),

for the removal/abatement costs of these items ($986), and two Administrative Citation Penalties ($600) for

expired tabs on a vehicle.

 

City inspectors went out to the property on October 18, 2011, to investigate junk and debris in the yard and expired

tabs on a vehicle.  An Administrative Citation was issued citing violations for each issue on October 20, 2011, with

a compliance date of October 27, 2011.  The re-inspection took place on October 28, 2011, at which time there was

no change in either condition so a $300 Citation Penalty for exterior storage and a $300 Citation Penalty for

expired tabs were assessed.  Later that day, the City's contractor abated the property including a wheel barrow,

empty bins, building materials/scrap wood, a wooden door, scrap metal, a wooden ladder, landscape edging,

tires, kitchen garbage bins, kid toys and bikes, a window air conditioning unit, a high chair, and other

miscellaneous junk and debris.  Items not abated included an iron patio set, gas grill, yard swing, storage bin, three

lawn mowers (all appeared to be operational), a trailer and a plow (all pictured in attachments).

Since the property still had a vehicle with expired tabs, a $600 Administrative Citation was issued and sent to the

property owner on November 1, 2011, with a compliance date of November 8, 2011.  The re-inspection took place

on November 16, 2011, at which time the vehicle was in compliance so only half ($300) of the Citation

Penalty amount was assessed.

The City had received notification from Connexus (10/17/11) and Centerpoint (10/6/11) that electric and gas

service had been disconnected at this property.  Since both gas and electricity were off at this property, the

City turned off the water to this home on November 8, 2011.  The City received notification from Anoka County

that this property was going through foreclosure and that the Sheriff's Sale had taken place on June 24, 2011.  For

all of these reasons, and because the property owner never contacted the City for any reason during the citation

process, the City believed that this property had been vacated. 

ACTION REQUESTED

In Case 12-15V, it is requested that the Board of Adjustment and Appeals recommend the City Council affirm the

special assessment in its entirety.

Attachments

Supporting Documents







































































   

Board of Adjustment and Appeals - Regular Session   12.           

Meeting Date: 03/01/2012  

Subject: Special Assessment Objection, Thomas Durkin, 11106 Hanson Blvd. NW, 15-31-24-31-0009,

Case 12-12V

From: Kristin DeGrande, Neighborhood Coordinator

INTRODUCTION

A proposed special assessment in the amount of $1,200 has been assessed against the above property.  The property

owner has filed an objection to the assessment.

BACKGROUND & CONSIDERATIONS

The amount of $1,200 is for three Administrative Citation Penalties - one for not having garbage service ($600 -

second offense within a 180 day period), one for junk and debris ($300), and one for parking off pavement ($300). 

 

City inspectors confirmed that this rental property did not have garbage service on August 5, 2011.  A

$600 Administrative Citation was issued on August 8, 2011, and sent to the property owner with a compliance date

of August 15, 2011.  On that same day, a separate Administrative Citation was issued for three violations ($300

each) including exterior storage of junk and debris, parking off pavement, and improper location of garbage can. 

The compliance date for these items was also set for August 15, 2011.  Before the re-inspection was schedule to

occur, the City inspector spoke with the tenant about the citations and granted them a time extension to clean up the

property.  The re-inspection ultimately took place on August 29, 2011, at which time it was determined all issues

had been resolved with the exception of obtaining garbage service.  The tenant and property owner wanted to

appeal the tenant's need for garbage service and on October 3, 2011, the City inspector sent a garbage exemption

application to both the owner and the tenant with a submission deadline of October 10, 2011.  By October 21,

2011, the exemption application had not been received, the property still did not have garbage service and so the

$600 Citation Penalty was assessed. 

During this process, on September 23, 2011, the city inspector found the property to be in violation again of

exterior storage and junk and debris, inoperable vehicles (flat tires on two vehicles), and parking off pavement.  For

these reasons, an Administrative Citation was issued on September 29, 2011, citing both violations each carrying

a $600 Citation Penalty (both were second offenses).  The citation established a compliance date of October 6,

2011.  The re-inspection took place on October 28, 2011, at which time the property was found to be in compliance,

so only half of each $600 Citation Penalty ($300 - two of them) was assessed.

Still without garbage service, another Administrative Citation ($1,200) was issued on October 31, 2011, with a

compliance date of November 7, 2011.  On November 8, 2011, City staff confirmed that garbage service had been

obtained for this property and compliance was achieved.

ACTION REQUESTED

In Case 12-12V, it is requested that the Board of Adjustment and Appeals recommend the City Council affirm the

special assessment in its entirety.

Attachments



Supporting Documents













































   

Board of Adjustment and Appeals - Regular Session   13.           

Meeting Date: 03/01/2012  

Subject: Special Assessment Objection, KimMarie Hagen, 2441 112th Lane NW, 16-31-24-41-0098, Case

12-13V

From: Kristin DeGrande, Neighborhood Coordinator

INTRODUCTION

A proposed special assessment in the amount of $600 has been assessed against the above property.  The property

owner has filed an objection to the assessment.

BACKGROUND & CONSIDERATIONS

The amount of $600 is for two Administrative Citation Penalties for the exterior storage of junk and debris ($300)

and expired tabs on a vehicle ($300).

 

City Inspectors went out to the property on October 18, 2011 to investigate junk and debris in the yard and a

vehicle with expired tabs.  An Administrative Citation was issued citing a violation for each of these issues on

October 20, 2011, with a compliance date of October 27, 2011.  During the re-inspection on November 28, 2011,

the vehicle tabs were still expired and the items in the yard including car parts (tires, car seats, and a windshield)

and other miscellaneous items had not been removed so the two $300 Citation Penalties were assessed.  Due to the

size of some of the items and their location deep in the back end of the property, city staff decided to continue

monitoring the property in hopes that the property owner would clean up the items on their own.  Abatement was

not ordered.

Since the property was not yet compliant, a second Administrative Citation (with a penalty of $600 for

each violation) was issued on December 2, 2011, with a compliance date of December 9, 2011.  The re-inspection

of the property on December 12, 2011, found that all issues had been resolved and the property was in compliance.

ACTION REQUESTED

In Case 12-13V, it is requested that the Board of Adjustment and Appeals recommend the City Council affirm the

special assessment in its entirety.

Attachments

Supporting Documents



























   

Board of Adjustment and Appeals - Regular Session   14.           

Meeting Date: 03/01/2012  

Subject: Special Assessment Objection, Carly Hanson, 10521 Palm Street NW, 23-31-24-41-0054, Case

12-16V

From: Kristin DeGrande, Neighborhood Coordinator

INTRODUCTION

A proposed special assessment in the amount of $688.50 have been assessed against the above property.  The

property owner has filed an objection to the assessment.

BACKGROUND & CONSIDERATIONS

The amount of $688.50 is for an Administrative Citation Penalty for the exterior storage of junk and debris ($300)

and for the removal/abatement costs of these items ($388.50).

 

City inspectors went out to the property on October 13, 2011, to investigate junk and debris in yard and an

Administrative Citation was issued with a compliance date of October 20, 2011.  The items were still there during

the re-inspection on October 21, 2011, so the Citation Penalty was assessed and the items were abated.  As

is standard for abatement at occupied properties, a police officer escorted the City inspector and City contractor to

the property  later that day to abate the items in the yard including a piece of furniture, box spring and mattress,

railroad ties, a wooden palatte, scrap wood and metal, and other miscellaneous junk and debris.  The police officer

knocked at the door upon arrival but no one answered the door.  The homeowner came out of the house after the

abatement had begun and was confused as to why the items were being taken.  She found her citation inside her

house and the City inspector explained the citation, abatement and appeal processes.

ACTION REQUESTED

In Case 12-16V, it is requested that the Board of Adjustment and Appeals recommend the City Council affirm the

special assessment in its entirety.

Attachments

Supporting Documents
















	Agenda
	Item0.00.  Memo Re_ Consideration of Appeals from David Brodie, Assistant City Attorney
	Item5.  February 2, 2012 Minutes
	ATT.February 2, 2012 Minutes
	Item8.01.  Bruce Nelson, Case 12-03V
	ATT.Supporting Documents
	Item8.02.  Gerald Patt, Case 12-04V
	ATT.Supporting Documents
	Item8.03.  Derek Glowacki (POA for Donald Glowacki), Case 12-05V
	ATT.Supporting Documents
	Item8.05.  Barbara Curry, Case 12-07V
	ATT.Supporting Documents
	Item8.06.  Leslie Price, Case 12-08V
	ATT.Supporting Documents
	Item8.07.  Jon Smoluch, Case 12-09V
	ATT.Supporting Documents
	Item8.08.  Derrek Rand Abendroth, Case 12-10V
	ATT.Supporting Documents
	Item8.09.  Larisa Pokhilchuk, Case 12-11V
	ATT.Supporting Documents
	Item8.10.  Mayli Vang, Case 12-14V
	ATT.Supporting Documents
	Item8.11.  Kemet Jolly, 422 109th Avenue NW, 24-31-24-21-0063, Case 12-15V
	ATT.Supporting Documents
	Item8.12.  Thomas Durkin, Case 12-12V
	ATT.Supporting Documents
	Item8.13.  KimMarie Hagen, Case 12-13V
	ATT.Supporting Documents
	Item8.14.  Carly Hanson, Case 12-16V
	ATT.Supporting Documents

